

Request for Tender

RFT Number	T21/001
Request for Tender (RFT)	Lease and operation of Service Station
Tender Closing Time	4.00pm Friday 4 th March 2022

CONTENTS

SECTION A - INTRODUCTION	1
SECTION B – TENDER INFORMATION	2
SECTION C – CONDITIONS OF TENDERING	4
SECTION D – RESPONSE SCHEDULES	22
SECTION E – AGREEMENT	28



SECTION A - INTRODUCTION

1. BACKGROUND

Woorabinda Aboriginal Shire Council ("**Council**") is the owner of the Land and building where the Woorabinda Service Station is located being Lot 11 on SP268500, known as 113 Munns Drive, Woorabinda.

Council currently operates the Service Station but intends for it to be operated as a commercial business with a particular focus on local employment and training.

Pursuant to section 228(2)(a) of the *Local Government Regulation 2012*, this Request for Tender invites parties to submit tenders to enter into a Lease with Council, for the Service Station.

Tenders will be assessed by reference to the Conditions of Tendering in Section C of this Request for Tender. Tenderers must complete and submit the Response Schedule contained in Section D of this Request for Tender.

Tenderers may submit a Tender that contains different terms from the proposed Lease. However, such Tenders will be treated as Non-Conforming Tenders.

To be considered, Tenders must be submitted by 4pm on Friday 10th September. Tenders submitted after this time may not be considered.

Tenders are to be lodged in accordance with Section B and Section C of this Request for Tender.

Canvassing of any Council staff members or Councillors will disqualify Tenderers from the Procurement Process.



SECTION B – TENDER INFORMATION

This Tender Information must be read in conjunction with and will form part of the Conditions of Tendering.

Purpose for Request:	Lease of Service Station	
Tender Closing Time:	Date: Friday 4 th March 2022	
	Time: 4:00pm	
Tender Validity Period:	6 months	
Council's Representative	Mike Hayward Chief Executive Officer Email: <u>ceo@woorabinda.qld.gov.au</u> Telephone: 07 4925 9800	
Lodgement Requirements:	Tenders must be lodged by the Tender Closing Time either:	
	• by post or by hand to 112 Munns Drive, Woorabinda 4713.	
	• By email to ceo@woorabinda.qld.gov.au	
	Tenders must be clearly endorsed with the RFT Number on the cover of this Request.	
Evaluation Criteria:	Criteria	
	Lessee's proposal about lease rental and lease term	
	Suitability as Lessee, including financial capacity and evidence of capacity to work collaboratively with Council in accordance with the terms of the appropriate arrangement	
	Experience operating similar facilities	
	Possession of relevant, mandatory licenses and accreditations, or demonstrated ability to obtain.	



Supporting Information, including:

- Business Plan;
- Facility Operating Manual;
- Safety Management System
- Site Management Plan



SECTION C – CONDITIONS OF TENDERING

Contents

Page No.

1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	6
1.1	Definitions	6
1.2	Interpretation	8
		C C
2.	REQUEST FOR TENDER	9
2.1	Conditions of Tendering	9
2.2	The Tender Documents	10
3.	THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS	10
3.1	Communications with Council	10
3.2	Nature of communications	10
3.3	Council's Rights before Tender Closing Time	11
3.4	Conduct of Tenderers	11
3.5	Complaints in Relation to the Procurement Process	12
4.	LODGEMENT OF TENDERS	13
4.1	Lodgement	13
4.2	Tenderer's Warranties	14
4.3	Submission of Tender constitutes acceptance of Agreement	15
4.4	Non-Conforming Tenders	15
4.5	Intellectual Property	15
5.	ASSESSMENT OF TENDERS	16
5.1	Tender Opening	16
5.2	Council's Rights After Tenders Received	16
5.3	Assessment of Tenders	17



5.4	Tender Validity Period	18
5.5	Form of Acceptance	18
5.6	Notification of Unsuccessful Tenderers	18
6.	TENDERER'S ACKNOWLEDGMENTS	19
6.1	Tendering Costs	19
6.2	Tenderer to Inform Itself	19
6.3	No Liability	19
7.	CONFIDENTIALITY AND USE OF INFORMATION	20
7.1	Confidentiality	20
7.2	Disclosure by Council	21
7.3	Media Release	21



1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

- (a) In these Conditions of Tendering:
 - (i) **Business Day** means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday in Woorabinda.
 - (ii) **Conditions of Tendering** means the conditions of tendering contained in this Section C Conditions of Tendering of the Request for Tender;
 - (iii) Conflict of Interest includes any activity or interest of the Tenderer which may be in conflict with the Tenderer's ability to lodge a Tender in good faith and objectively. A Conflict of Interest will include a real, perceived or apprehended conflict.
 - (iv) **Conforming Tender** means a Tender which:
 - A. is in the form required by the Response Schedules;
 - B. complies with the Lodgement Requirements;
 - C. contains substantially all of the information and documentation required by the Tender Documents;
 - (v) Consequential Loss means indirect loss, loss of profits, loss of revenue, loss of savings, loss of opportunity, loss of bargain, loss of use, damage to credit rating, loss of or damage to reputation, future reputation or publicity, loss in connection with claims made by third parties, remote, abnormal or unforeseeable loss and any consequential loss or damage that is similar to the other categories of loss in this definition, whether or not such loss or damage was foreseeable or within the contemplation of Council and/or the Tenderer at any time;
 - (vi) **Council** means Woorabinda Aboriginal Shire Council, and may, if the context requires, include a duly authorised delegate of Council;
 - (vii) **Council's Representative** means the person specified in the Tender Information;
 - (viii) **Evaluation Criteria** means the evaluation criteria set out in the Tender Information;
 - (ix) Intellectual Property Rights means copyright, patents and all rights in relation to inventions, registered and unregistered trademarks (including service marks), registered designs, circuit layouts and all other rights resulting from intellectual activity in the industrial, scientific, literary or artistic fields;
 - (x) Introduction means Section A Introduction of this Request for Tender;
 - (xi) Law includes all:



- A. legislation and subordinate legislation, including local laws, rules statutory instruments, by-laws, orders, ordinances, awards and proclamations of a local government authority, the State of Queensland, the Commonwealth which are applicable to the Agreement, the Tender Documents, the Procurement Process or which are otherwise in force and includes all related fees and charges;
- B. certificates, licenses, accreditations, clearances, authorisations, approvals, consents, permits and other requirements of authorities and other organisations having jurisdiction applicable to the Agreement, the Tender Documents or the Procurement Process and includes all related fees and charges;
- (xii) Lease means the Lease in Section E as modified by any subsequent negotiations between Council and a Tenderer which are evidenced in writing and executed by the parties, and which has been prepared in accordance with this Request for Tender;
- (xiii) **Lodgement Requirements** means the lodgement requirements noted in the Tender Information;
- (xiv) Non-Conforming Tender means a Tender which is not a Conforming Tender;
- (xv) Personnel includes the officers, employees, agents, representatives, agents, Lessees and consultants of a party and any other person or entity for whom that party is vicariously liable, and, in the case of Council, includes councillors;
- (xvi) **Procurement Process** means the process associated with calling tenders in accordance with these Conditions of Tendering;
- (xvii) **Purpose for Request** means the purpose for which this Request for Tender has been made, as identified in the Tender Information;
- (xviii) **Request for Tender** means this request for tender (including Sections A to E) and all documents included in or incorporated by reference into it;
- (xix) **Response Schedules** means the fields in Section D Response Schedules which are to be lodged in accordance with the Tender Documents;
- (xx) **Tender** means the Tender submitted by a Tenderer in response to this Request for Tender and includes all documents and information submitted with or as part of the Tender;
- (xxi) **Tender Closing Time** means the closing time detailed in the Tender Information;
- (xxii) **Tender Documents** means this Request for Tender, any communications to tenderers issued pursuant to these Conditions of Tendering, and all documents included in or incorporated by reference into these documents;
- (xxiii) **Tender Information** means the information contained in Section B Tender Information of this Request for Tender;



- (xxiv) Tender Validity Period means the earlier of:
 - A. the period of time identified as such in the Tender Information, or, where a date is stated, the period ending on that date;
 - B. the date that the Tenderer is notified that their Tender has not been accepted.

(xxv) Tenderer means:

- A. any person who submits a Tender; and
- B. to the extent to which the Tender Documents can apply to any other person who obtains a copy of any of the Tender Documents during the Procurement Process, also includes such other persons;

1.2 Interpretation

- (a) These Conditions of Tendering must be read in conjunction with the Introduction and the Tender Information. The Introduction and the Tender Information are not comprehensive or complete in themselves, but shall form part of these Conditions of Tendering.
- (b) Without limiting the above, in the Tender Documents:
 - (i) an obligation of two or more parties binds them jointly and each of them severally and an obligation incurred in favour of two or more parties is enforceable by them severally;
 - (ii) words importing the singular number include the plural number and words importing the plural number include the singular number;
 - (iii) clause headings are for reference purposes only and must not be used in interpretation;
 - (iv) the words 'include', 'includes' or 'including' shall be read as if followed by 'without limitation';
 - (v) where any word or phrase is given a defined meaning, any other part of speech or other grammatical form concerning the word or phrase has a corresponding meaning;
 - (vi) where time is to be reckoned from a day or event, the day or the day of the event must be excluded and if any time period specified in the Tender Documents expires on a day which is not a business day, the period will expire at the end of the next business day;
 - (vii) a reference to:
 - A. a person includes any other legal entity and a reference to a legal entity includes a person;



- B. a party includes the party's heirs, executors, successors and permitted assigns;
- C. any gender shall be read as including every gender;
- D. a monetary amount is a reference to an Australian currency amount;
- E. any Law, standard, code, guideline or policy includes a reference to that Law, standard, code, guideline or policy as amended or replaced from time to time, and all related Law, standards, codes, guidelines or policies;
- F. writing includes any mode of representing or reproducing words in tangible and permanently visible form, and includes e-mail and facsimile transmissions;
- G. a time is to local time in Hughenden;
- H. a business day is to a day that banks are open for trading in Hughenden.
- (viii) the Request for Tender and Procurement Process are governed by the Law of Queensland and the Commonwealth of Australia which are in force in Queensland. Council and Tenderers submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts of Queensland, relevant Federal Courts and Courts competent to hear appeals from them;
- (ix) the *contra proferentem* rule and other rules of construction will not apply to disadvantage a party whether that party put the clause forward, was responsible for drafting all or part of it or would otherwise benefit from it;
- (x) the rights and remedies of a party under this Request for Tender are in addition to the rights or remedies conferred on the party at law or in equity;
- (xi) if a provision of this Request for Tender is void or unenforceable it must be severed from this Request for Tender and the provisions that are not void or unenforceable are unaffected by the severance; and
- (xii) no waiver by a party of a provision of this Request for Tender is binding unless made in writing.

2. **REQUEST FOR TENDER**

2.1 Conditions of Tendering

- (a) This Request for Tender is not an offer but is a request for Tenderers to submit a Tender for the goods, services or other deliverables specified as the Purpose for Request.
- (b) The Tenderer acknowledges that upon submitting a Tender (irrespective of whether that Tender is a Conforming Tender or a Non-Conforming Tender), the Tenderer shall be bound by the terms of these Conditions of Tendering as though the Conditions of Tendering were a deed between Council and the Tenderer.



(c) If the Tenderer breaches any of these Conditions of Tendering, Council may, at its discretion and without limiting its other rights, exclude the Tenderer's Tender(s) from assessment.

2.2 The Tender Documents

- (a) The Tender Documents must be read and construed together and are intended to be mutually explanatory.
- (b) If the Tenderer:
 - (i) finds any defect, deficiency, error, inconsistency, ambiguity, discrepancy or conflict in or between, or omission from any of the documents comprising the Tender Documents or any other information provided by Council; or
 - (ii) finds any inconsistency or conflict between the Tender Documents and any Law; or
 - (iii) has any doubt as to the meaning of any portion of the Tender Documents,

the Tenderer must notify Council in accordance with clause 3.1 and (if applicable) must include in its Tender a statement of the interpretation upon which it relies and on which its Tender has been prepared.

- (c) When certain work is specified or described in the Tender Documents other work that is obviously or indispensably necessary will be deemed to be included even if it is not specifically mentioned.
- (d) Council gives no warranty and makes no representation as to, and accepts no responsibility for, the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the Tender Documents or any other information provided by or on behalf of Council.
- (e) The Tender Documents must be used solely for the purpose of tendering for the Agreement, and for no other purpose.
- (f) The Tender Documents shall at all times remain the property of Council.

3. THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS

3.1 Communications with Council

- (a) Unless otherwise agreed with Council, or expressly contemplated in these Conditions of Tender, all communications between the Tenderer and Council in relation to the Procurement Process shall be conducted with Council's Representative.
- (b) Council's Representative may, in their discretion, circulate any response it provides to a Tenderer to all other Tenderers.

3.2 Nature of communications

(a) The Tenderer must not discuss the Procurement Process or obtain any information relating to the Procurement Process from any Personnel (including Councillors) of Council



other than in accordance with the preceding clause, unless expressly contemplated in these Conditions of Tender.

- (b) Without limiting any other provision of these Conditions of Tender, Council will not be bound by, and the Tenderer may not rely upon, any oral advice or information nor any written advice or information provided other than in accordance with this clause 3.1.
- (c) Council:
 - (i) may in its absolute discretion limit the time for Tenderers to make queries or requests for further information or clarifications;
 - (ii) is not bound to respond to any query or request for further information or clarification, whether received prior to or after the required time; and
 - (iii) may in its absolute discretion notify any or all Tenderers of a query or request for further information or clarification made (without identifying the submitting party) and Council's response to the query or request.

3.3 Council's Rights before Tender Closing Time

- (a) Without limiting any other provision of these Conditions of Tender, Council may, at any time before the Tender Closing Time, in its absolute discretion:
 - (i) modify or depart from the procedures set out in the Tender Documents;
 - (ii) extend or reduce any timeframes or dates provided for in the Tender Documents;
 - (iii) amend, add to or delete any part of the Tender Documents;
 - (iv) suspend, terminate or alter the Procurement Process at any time;
 - (v) request any one or more Tenderers to attend meetings.

3.4 Conduct of Tenderers

- (a) The Tenderer must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not:
 - (i) engage in misleading or deceptive conduct in relation to the Procurement Process;
 - (ii) engage in any collusive tendering, anticompetitive conduct, or any other unlawful or unethical conduct with any other Tenderer, or any other person in connection with the Procurement Process;
 - (iii) approach or communicate, or attempt to approach or communicate, in any way with any Personnel of Council, other than in accordance with the specific provisions of these Conditions of Tender;
 - (iv) attempt to improperly influence any of Council's Personnel, or violate any applicable Law regarding the offering of inducements in connection with the Procurement Process;



- (v) accept or seek improper assistance of any of Council's Personnel, or any former Personnel of Council in preparing its Tender; or
- (vi) use any information improperly obtained, or obtained in breach of any obligation of confidentiality in preparing the Tender.
- (b) The Tenderer must:
 - (i) disclose in its Tender any Conflict of Interest arising or which is likely to arise as a result of this Procurement Process or the performance of the Tenderer's obligations under the Agreement if it is the successful Tenderer; and
 - (ii) not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not, engage in any activity or obtain any interest which is likely to result in a conflict between Council and the Tenderer's interests; and
 - (iii) immediately notify Council of any Conflict of Interest that arises or is likely to arise and which is not disclosed in the Tender.
- (c) The Tenderer must at all times during the Procurement Process comply and ensure that its Personnel comply, with any Law applicable to the Procurement Process.
- (d) Without limiting any other right of Council, Council may exclude from assessment any Tender lodged by a Tenderer who, in Council's reasonable opinion, has engaged in any behaviour contrary to this clause in relation to the Procurement Process.
- (e) The Tenderer indemnifies Council against all costs (including legal costs), expenses, losses or damages incurred or suffered by Council in connection with a breach of subclause 3.4(a), 3.4(b) or 3.4(c). This indemnity extends to:
 - (i) costs and expenses incurred by Council relating to any legal challenge to the Procurement Process including the acceptance of a Tender or anything related to the Procurement Process; and
 - (ii) costs and expenses incurred by Council in terminating and/or recommencing the Procurement Process.

3.5 Complaints in Relation to the Procurement Process

- (a) Any complaint in relation to the Procurement Process or the Request for Tender must:
 - (i) be made in writing to Council:
 - A. in accordance with clause 3.1, if the complaint is made prior to the Tender Closing Time;
 - B. otherwise in accordance with Council's Complaints Policy or equivalent policy published on Council's website;
 - (ii) be made immediately upon the cause of the complaint arising or upon a Tenderer becoming aware of the complaint or its cause;



- (iii) contain adequate details of:
 - A. the complaint (including the cause of the complaint, the basis upon which the complaint is made and any other relevant issues);
 - B. the effect on the complainant;
 - C. the complainant's desired outcome; and
 - D. any other relevant information,

to allow Council to properly investigate the cause of the complaint.

- (b) Council will investigate and otherwise deal with the complaint in the manner Council considers reasonably appropriate, having regard to:
 - (i) the nature of the complaint, including whether Council considers the complaint to be frivolous or vexatious;
 - (ii) Council's Complaints Policy or equivalent Policy Council considers to be relevant in the circumstances;
 - (iii) any other matter that Council considers reasonably appropriate.
- (c) The complainant has no recourse against Council for any reason and in any circumstances as a result of the performance of Council's obligations or the exercise of its discretion under this clause.

4. LODGEMENT OF TENDERS

4.1 Lodgement

- (a) The Tender must comply with the Lodgement Requirements.
- (b) A Tender will be received by the Tender Closing Time if:
 - (i) it is received by Council by the Tender Closing Time, if the Tender is delivered by hand;
 - (ii) it is in Council's Post Office Box by the Tender Closing Time, if the Tender is being delivered by post.
- (c) The Tenderer may at any time prior to the Tender Closing Time submit an amendment to its Tender in the same manner as its original Tender. Any amendment must clearly identify the Tender which is being amended and the amendments to be made. To the extent of any inconsistency between the Tender and the amendment, the amendments will prevail.
- (d) Any Tender or an amendment to a Tender that is not received by the Tender Closing Time may be rejected or admitted to evaluation at the discretion of Council. In exercising its discretion to reject or admit a late Tender to evaluation, Council may, without limitation,



take into account the time at which the Tender is received, the reason the Tender is late and whether any other Tender has been received by the Tender Closing Time.

- (e) Council may, in its absolute discretion, elect to consider a Tender received after the Tender Closing Time if:
 - (i) Council is satisfied that the Tenderer has taken all reasonable steps to lodge its Tender on time and has notified Council of the technical failure prior to, on, or as soon as practicable after the Tender Closing Time;
 - (ii) the Tenderer was prevented from lodging its Tender on or before the Tender Closing Time due to technical failure beyond the control of the Tenderer, and the Tenderer is able to produce evidence of that technical failure that is acceptable to Council; and
 - (iii) the Tenderer lodged its Tender successfully as soon as possible after the technical failure was resolved.

4.2 Tenderer's Warranties

- (a) By lodging a Tender, the Tenderer warrants that:
 - (i) all information contained in the Tender is accurate;
 - (ii) it has complied with its obligations under the Tender Documents;
 - (iii) it has not relied on the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the Tender Documents, or any other information provided by or on behalf of Council in preparing its Tender;
 - (iv) it has not relied on the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any other information provided by or on behalf of Council in preparing its Tender;
 - (v) it has satisfied itself of the local conditions, environment and facilities that may impact upon the Tenderer's ability to perform its obligations under the Agreement;
 - (vi) it has examined all information relevant to the risks, contingencies and other circumstances having an effect on its Tender and the performance of its obligations under the Agreement;
 - (vii) it has informed itself fully as to the accuracy, adequacy and completeness of its Tender for the performance of the obligations under the Agreement and that the rates and prices included in the Tender include compliance with all obligations under the Agreement and all matters necessary for the complete performance of the Tenderer's obligations under the Agreement;
 - (viii) it has carried out its own investigations as to the feasibility of its Tender and has relied on those investigations.



- (b) Failure by a Tenderer to do any of the things that it has warranted will not relieve the Tenderer of its obligation to perform under the Agreement that may be entered into between the Tenderer and Council.
- (c) Council does not represent or warrant that the information provided in this Request for Tender, including any information provided by Council's Personnel or as part of the Procurement Process generally, is accurate, adequate or complete.

4.3 Submission of Tender constitutes acceptance of Agreement

- (a) If the Tenderer lodges a Tender (including a Non-Conforming Tender), the Tenderer will be taken to unconditionally agree to enter into the Agreement with Council.
- (b) However, nothing in this clause limits Council's rights pursuant to clause 5.2(b).

4.4 Non-Conforming Tenders

- (a) Council may, in its absolute discretion, accept or exclude a Non-Conforming Tender from assessment.
- (b) In exercising its discretion to exclude a Non-Conforming Tender, Council may, without limitation, take into account the nature and extent of the non-conformances, whether the Tenderer has also submitted a Conforming Tender and whether any Conforming Tender has been lodged by another Tenderer.
- (c) Acknowledgement by Council that it has received a Tender does not imply that the Tender has been admitted as a Conforming Tender.

4.5 Intellectual Property

- (a) All Intellectual Property Rights in the Tender Documents and other documents supplied to the Tenderer by or on behalf of Council are as between Council and the Tenderer the property of Council.
- (b) The Intellectual Property Rights in any material included in the Tender and created by the Tenderer and relating specifically to the Agreement vests in Council upon acceptance by Council of a Tender (or any part thereof).
- (c) To the extent that any material submitted by a Tenderer in its Tender is the subject of preexisting Intellectual Property Rights of third parties, the Tenderer warrants that it is able to procure for Council an irrevocable, royalty free licence to use, adapt, reproduce, publish and sublicense on the same terms all such Intellectual Property Rights and agrees to obtain such licence upon acceptance of its Tender (or any part thereof).
- (d) By submitting a Tender, the Tenderer is deemed to have granted Council a licence to reproduce the Tender in whole or in part and to do or authorise any other act or omission in relation to the Tender for the purposes of exercising its rights, or carrying out its functions or obligations under these Conditions of Tendering or the Agreement. The Tenderer shall procure all necessary consents or waivers from creators in respect of moral rights under the *Copyright Act 1968* (Cth) to allow Council to do or authorise any such acts or omissions.



(e) The Tenderer indemnifies Council against all costs (including legal costs), expenses, losses or damages incurred or suffered by Council in connection with a claim by a third party alleging that any material submitted as, with or in relation to the Tender or any act or omission done or authorised by Council or done in accordance with these Conditions of Tendering or the Agreement in respect of such material infringes the Intellectual Property Rights of that third party.

5. ASSESSMENT OF TENDERS

5.1 Tender Opening

Tenders will not be opened publicly and Tenderers will not be permitted to attend the opening of Tenders.

5.2 Council's Rights After Tenders Received

- (a) Without limiting any other specific clause in these Conditions of Tender, Council may, at any time after Tenders have been received, in its absolute discretion:
 - (i) request any one or more Tenderers to change their Tender to take account of a change in the Tender Documents or any error in the Tender Documents.
 However, Council has no obligation to do so and need not extend the same opportunity to each Tenderer;
 - (ii) request a meeting with any one or more Tenderers to obtain additional information from that Tenderer;
 - (iii) seek to clarify and alter any aspect of a Tenderer's Tender and may, at its discretion, advise any or all of the preferred Tenderers of such clarification or alteration;
 - (iv) request any one or more Tenderers to provide a presentation of their Tender in person at Council's office at no cost to Council; and
 - (v) request additional information from one or more Tenderers.

(b) Negotiations

- (i) Council reserves the right to negotiate amendments to any aspect of the Tender or the Tender Documents with any one or more Tenderers. Council is under no obligation to enter into negotiations with any Tenderer, nor is Council required to extend the opportunity to each Tenderer.
- (ii) Council entering into negotiations pursuant to the preceding subclause does not constitute a rejection of the Tenderer's Tender or a counter offer to the Tenderer, unless specified otherwise.
- (iii) Council may suspend or terminate negotiations at any time and for whatever reason.



5.3 Assessment of Tenders

- (a) In determining which Tender is most advantageous to Council, each Tender admitted for assessment in accordance with these Conditions of Tendering will be assessed against the Evaluation Criteria.
- (b) In assessing Tenders, Council may
 - (i) consider:
 - A. information contained in the Tender;
 - B. outcomes from discussions with Tenderer's referees (if any);
 - C. any other information available to Council;
 - D. any relevant Law, including the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld) and any regulation enacted under it; and
 - E. other information which Council reasonably considers to be relevant to its assessment, including but not limited to any procurement policies or procedures implemented by Council;
 - (ii) ignore any part of the Tender which is ambiguous, uncertain, unclear or illegible without seeking clarification from the Tenderer and may assess the balance of the Tender.
- (c) Council may seek any further information or assistance from any person (including third parties) where Council considers in its absolute discretion it is necessary to do so in order to properly evaluate any aspect of the Tender. Council may (but is not required to) notify the Tenderer of a third party appointed by Council to provide such assistance to Council, and, if advised, the Tenderer must cooperate with and provide all information and assistance reasonably requested by such third party. Council may exclude from assessment or reject a Tender if the Tenderer does not provide such cooperation, information and other assistance.
- (d) Council:
 - (i) is not bound to accept the lowest or any Tender, or any clarification, alteration or amendment of a Tender; and
 - (ii) may, subject to these Conditions of Tendering, at its discretion, reject or accept:
 - A. a late Tender;
 - B. a Non-Conforming Tender;
 - C. a Tender which fails to achieve a satisfactory score against any of the Evaluation Criteria;
 - D. a Tender which has been clarified, altered or amended in accordance with these Conditions of Tendering; or



E. a Tender submitted by a Tenderer that has breached these Conditions of Tendering.

5.4 Tender Validity Period

- (a) Each Tender must remain valid and open for acceptance by Council until the end of the Tender Validity Period.
- (b) Notwithstanding clause 5.4(a), if a Tenderer wishes to withdraw its Tender before the end of the Tender Validity Period, Council may, in its absolute discretion, and without any obligation to do so for the benefit of the Tenderer, allow the Tenderer to withdraw its Tender. Council's consent to the withdrawal of the Tender may be subject to conditions.
- (c) Council may request an extension of the Tender Validity Period at any time by giving written notice to the Tenderer. If a Tenderer does not agree to extend the Tender Validity Period as requested by Council then Council may exclude the Tenderer's Tender from assessment or further assessment as the case may be.

5.5 Form of Acceptance

- (a) A Tender shall be deemed to be accepted when Council expressly advises the successful Tenderer in writing that the Tenderer's Tender (as amended by any negotiations pursuant to clause 5.2(b)) is accepted.
- (b) However, notwithstanding Council's acceptance of a Tender, no binding agreement will exist between the parties until any documents required to form part of the Agreement has been duly executed by both parties in its final form.
- (c) An executed agreement will supersede any prior representations, agreements, statements or understandings (whether oral or in writing).
- (d) The Tenderer acknowledges and agrees that if their Tender is accepted pursuant to subclause (a) of this clause, then the Tenderer must take all steps reasonably required by Council to complete and sign any documents that Council requires to form part of the Agreement.

5.6 Notification of Unsuccessful Tenderers

- (a) Council shall, subject to its rights under these Tender Documents, notify all unsuccessful Tenderers as soon as practicable after a Tender is accepted under clause 5.5.
- (b) Unsuccessful Tenderers may request that Council provides feedback on the Tenderer's Tender and Council's response will be at its discretion.
- (c) A Tender shall not be deemed to be rejected until Council notifies the unsuccessful Tenderer in writing that the Tender was not successful.



6. TENDERER'S ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

6.1 Tendering Costs

- (a) The Tenderer expends money, makes commitments and incurs liabilities in considering and responding to this Request for Tender ("**Tendering Costs**") at its own risk and expense.
- (b) Council shall not be liable to the Tenderer, for any reason whatsoever, to reimburse or otherwise compensate the Tenderer for any part of the Tendering Costs or for any loss associated with responding to this Request for Tender, including Consequential Loss.

6.2 Tenderer to Inform Itself

- (a) The Tenderer must undertake all necessary enquiries and investigations to satisfy itself as to:
 - (i) the accuracy, adequacy and completeness of the Tender Documents and any other information provided by or on behalf of Council;
 - (ii) all considerations, including logistical considerations, associated with discharging obligations under the Agreement; and
 - (iii) any other risks, contingencies and other circumstances which could have an effect on the cost of discharging obligations under the Agreement or the compliance with the Tenderer's other obligations under the Agreement in the event that the Tenderer's Tender is accepted.
- (b) If the Tenderer requires any further information or documentation from Council to enable it to comply with this clause then the Tenderer must notify Council of this in accordance with these Conditions of Tendering at least 7 days prior to the Tender Closing Time.
- (c) The Tenderer must allow, and warrants that it has allowed, in its Tender for:
 - (i) all risks, contingencies and other circumstances referred to in clause 6.2(a);
 - (ii) carrying out all obligations required under the Agreement;
 - (iii) all other risks which will be borne by the Tenderer under the Agreement if its Tender is accepted.

6.3 No Liability

- (a) Without limiting any other clause in these Conditions of Tendering, Council and its Personnel are not liable upon any claim for, and the Tenderer indemnifies Council against and releases Council from all liability for, any costs, expenses, losses, damages suffered or incurred by the Tenderer or any of the Tenderer's Personnel (including Consequential Loss) relating to, or arising out of or in connection with:
 - (i) the preparation and submission of the Tenderer's Tender;
 - (ii) the exercise by Council of any of its rights under the Tender Documents; or



- (iii) any defect, deficiency, error, inconsistency, ambiguity, discrepancy or conflict in or between, or omission from any of the documents comprising the Tender Documents, or any other information provided by Council, or Council's Personnel in connection with the Procurement Process.
- (b) If a court finds that Council is liable to any Tenderer with respect to the Procurement Process, the Tenderer agrees that the total aggregate liability of Council to the Tenderer for any negligence of Council or its Personnel, breach of statute by Council, breach of Contract shall be limited to \$1,000.00.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY AND USE OF INFORMATION

7.1 Confidentiality

- (a) **Council's confidentiality**
 - (i) Subject to this clause, any information contained in the Tender Documents which is not in the public domain is to be treated by the Tenderer as confidential ('Confidential Information'). Confidential Information contained in the Tender Documents is only to be used for the purpose of preparing a Tender in response to the Tender Documents.
 - (ii) Each Tenderer:
 - A. must ensure that only appropriate Personnel have access to the Confidential Information. In all such cases, the party is to inform such Personnel of the confidential nature of the information and that it must not be disclosed;
 - B. must not and must ensure that its Personnel do not at any time disclose such Confidential Information directly or indirectly to any person whatsoever for any reason, or use or permit it to be used directly or indirectly for any reason except to the extent required by a Law; and
 - C. indemnifies Council against any costs (including legal costs), expenses, losses, damages or liability arising out of disclosure or unauthorised use of Confidential Information by the party, or its Personnel.

(b) Tenderer's confidentiality

- (i) Subject to clause 7.2, information relating to the Tenderer's assets, operations, business dealings or financial affairs will be treated by Council as being confidential.
- (ii) No other information contained in the Tender will be treated as confidential, unless:
 - A. the information is clearly identified as confidential; and
 - B. Council considers in its discretion, (acting reasonably) that the information should be treated as confidential.



(iii) Council may use material submitted as, with or in relation to a Tender (including information relating to the design, products or methodology proposed to be used by the Tenderer but not including any material which is to be treated as confidential pursuant to clauses 7.1(b)(i) or 7.1(b)(ii)) for its own purposes, including for the purpose of seeking prices from other Tenderers and for use in a contract with a party other than the Tenderer.

7.2 Disclosure by Council

Notwithstanding the preceding clause, Council may disclose any information contained in a Tender:

- (i) to comply with any Law including, without limitation under the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) and the *Right to Information Act* 2009 (Qld);
- (ii) to comply with any of its own policies, procedures and governance requirements; and
- (iii) to such of its Personnel as is necessary to properly conduct the Procurement Process, including to evaluate and obtain approval of Tenders received.

7.3 Media Release

Tenderers must not, either on their own account or in conjunction with other parties, issue any publication, advertisement, document, article or information whether verbal or written, concerning the Purpose for Request, the Agreement or the Procurement Process in any media without the prior approval of Council.



SECTION D – RESPONSE SCHEDULES

All parts of Section D – Response Schedules must be completed and returned. If a Tender contains incomplete parts of this Section D, the Tender will be a Non-Conforming Tender.

Part A: Tenderer Details

Name of Tenderer	
ABN/ACN	
Contact Person	
Position of Contact Person	
Street Address of Tenderer	
Postal Address of Tenderer	
Email Address of Tenderer	
Contact Telephone of Tenderer	
Alternative Contact Telephone of Tenderer	
Is the Tenderer registered for GST?	Yes No
Does the Tenderer have any Conflicts of Interest?	Yes No
	If Yes, include details on additional pages.
Solvency of the Tenderer	Yes No
(a) Has the Tenderer been the subject of any form of insolvency or administration?	If Yes to any question, include details on additional pages.



(b) (c)	Have any of the directors of the Tenderer been the subject of any bankruptcy proceeding? Have any of the directors of the Tenderer been directors of a company that has been the subject of any insolvency or administration?	The Tenderer acknowledges and agrees that by submitting a Tender, Council is entitled to ask for further information about the Tenderer's financial position, including but not limited the Tenderer's financial statements.
Lega	l Information	Yes No
(a)	Is the Tenderer or any of its directors or officers a party to any legal proceeding (in Australia or overseas) that may reasonably be expected to affect the Tenderer's ability to perform under the Agreement?	If Yes to any question, include details on additional pages.
(b)	Has the Tenderer or any of its directors or officers been a party to any legal proceeding (in Australia or overseas) settled or otherwise finalised in the last 5 years that may reasonably be expected to affect the Tenderer's ability to perform under the Agreement?	
(c)	Is the Tenderer aware of any other legal matter that may reasonably be expected to affect the Tenderer's ability to perform under the Agreement?	
Acknowledgment about collusive tendering		The tenderer acknowledges and agrees that it has not engaged in any collusive tendering in breach of Clause 3.4(a)(ii) of the Conditions of Tendering:
		Yes No
		If No, Council will not consider your Tender any further.



Part B: Lease arrangement proposed

Proposed Term

	Tenderer to Complete
Initial Term	Number of Years:
Renewed Term	Number of Years:

Lessee Rental

Arrangement	Consideration
Lease Rental	\$ / annum
(Payable by the Lessee to Council)	[excluding GST]



Part C: Suitability of Lessee

Tenderers are to provide: -

- Their Firm's Capability Statement (if a Trading Enterprise)
- A copy of the Resume / CV for all key personnel involved in the operation.
- Annual General Purpose Financial Statements for the preceding 3 financial years.
- Criminal History Certificates (no older than 12 months).
- Evidence of suitable insurances, below: -

<u>Note</u>: A copy of the certificate of currency must be enclosed.

Insurance	Details
Public Liability Insurance	Insurer and Policy No:
Council's interest to be noted on the policy	Amount:
	Expiry Date:
Workers' compensation insurance	Insurer and Policy No:
	Amount:
	Expiry Date:
Third party property	Insurer and Policy No:
Council's interest to be noted on the policy	Amount:
	Expiry Date:

Part D: Evidence of Past Experience

On additional pages not exceeding two (2) pages, Tenderers should submit:

- (a) evidence of past experience operating a facility such as the Service Station, and/or of past experience that the Tenderer says will be beneficial for the operation of the facility;
- (b) three (3) references, with names, email addresses and telephone numbers, of persons who are not relatives of the Tenderer, and who can provide information about the Tenderer's past experience referred to in point (a) above.



Part E: Qualifications, Licenses & Accreditations

Tenderers are to submit evidence they hold or are eligible to obtain prior to commencement of the management arrangement, all relevant qualifications, licences and accreditations necessary for the operation of the Woorabinda Service Station.

PART F: Supporting Documents

Tenderers are to submit the following documents for review, in support of their tender and to demonstrate their ability to operate the Service Station in a safe, compliant and professional manner: -

- Business Plan
- Site Management Plan (incorporating facility inspection and maintenance program);

Part G: Non-Conforming Tenders

Optional: Tenderers do not need to complete this part.

The Tenderer may, as a Non-Conforming Tender, submit a Tender that departs from the terms of the Services Agreement.

A Non-Conforming Tender may be submitted as an alternative to, or instead of, a Conforming Tender, but Tenderers should note Council's rights under the Conditions of Tendering for Non-Conforming Tenders.



Part I: Tenderer Execution

I/We:

- have read and understand, and agree to be bound by, the Request for Tender, including the Conditions of Tendering;
- have not engaged in any collusive tendering in breach of Clause 3.4(a)(ii) of the Conditions of Tendering, and by signing this Part, I/we acknowledge and agree we have not engaged in collusive tendering;
- have completed all parts of the Response Schedules;
- acknowledge and agree that if my/our Tender is accepted, I/we must take all steps reasonably required by Council to complete and sign any documents that Council requires to form part of the Agreement.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED by THE TENDERER		
Signature		
Name of		
Signatory		
Signature of Second		
Signatory		
(if applicable)		
Name of Second		
Signatory		
(if applicable)		
Witness		
Signature		
Date		



SECTION E – LEASE